
DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM, AND SWANLEY HEALTH 
AND WELLBEING BOARD

Councillor Roger Gough (Chair) 

Councillor Ann Allen 
Councillor Tony Searles
Councillor David Turner

Debbie Stock 
Dr Elizabeth Lunt 

Sheri Green 
Graham Harris 

Anne Tidmarsh
Andrew Scott - Clark
Stuart Collins

Melanie Norris 
Sarah Kilkie

Lesley Bowles 

Cecilia Yardley

Kent County Council

Dartford Borough Council
Sevenoaks District Council
Gravesham Borough Council

DGS - CCG
DGS - CCG

Dartford Borough Council
Dartford Borough Council

Kent County Council
Kent County Council
Kent County Council

Gravesham Borough Council
Gravesham Borough Council

Sevenoaks District Council

Healthwatch

A meeting of the above Board will be held on Wednesday 18 June 

In Room B12 at 3.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

If a member of the Board is unable to attend this meeting, apologies for absence can 
be submitted to the Clerk to the meeting on 01322 343251 or by eMail to 
neil.murphy@dartford.gov.uk

Questions relating to the arrangements for meetings of the Board should be directed 
in the first instance to the Clerk



A G E N D A 
1. Apologies For Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
The minutes of the meeting of the Dartford Gravesham, and Swanley 
Health and Wellbeing Board held on 6 April 2016 are attached for 
confirmation.

Issues arising not addressed elsewhere on the Agenda can be raised 
at this item.

4. Kent County Council Health and Wellbeing Board: Meeting held on 
25 May 2016 (Pages 7 - 10)
The Chairman may wish to report on any issues of relevance to this 
Board arising from that meeting.

A copy of the Agenda is attached as an “Aide Memoire”

5. Urgent Items 
The Chairman will report on any urgent item and determine its 
position on the Agenda.

6. Actions Outstanding from Previous Meetings. (Pages 11 - 12)

7. Possible Merger with Swale HWB 

8. Local Children's Partnership Groups (Pages 13 - 54)
Stuart Collins and Thom Wilson will report on Children’s Groups and 
the Development of Children’s Partnership Boards are developing.

9. Update on the implications of new developments for the Health 
Sector and the new shape of Service Provision. 
A presentation by Dr Su Xavier.

10. Update on LGA Workshop 

11. Meeting Schedule for 2016 / 2017 and Availability for a Meeting in 
August (Pages 55 - 60)

12. Information Exchange 

13. Board Work Programme (Pages 61 - 64)



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

MINUTES of the meeting of the Dartford Gravesham and Swanley Health and 
Wellbeing Board held on Wednesday 6 April 2016.

PRESENT: Councillor Mrs Ann D Allen MBE (in the Chair)
Councillor Tony Searles
Councillor David Turner

Debbie Stock

Sheri Green
Stuart Collins
Sarah Kilkie

Cecilia Yardley

ALSO PRESENT: Adam Green, Stephanie Holt, Val Miller Tracy Schneider, and 
Karen Sharp

68. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Roger Gough, Dr 
Elizabeth Lunt, Graham Harris,  Anne Tidmarsh, Andrew Scott - Clark, 
Melanie Norris, Lesley Bowles, Dr Su Xavier, and Tristan Godfrey.

In the absence of the Chairman, Councillor Gough, it was agreed that 
Councillor Ann Allen should Chair the meeting.

69. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations received.

70. MINUTES 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 24 February 2016 were 
agreed as a correct record of that meeting.

71. KENT COUNTY COUNCIL HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

It was noted that the Chairman, Councillor Gough nor any other Member who 
had attended the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board meeting, were present at 
this meeting of our Board.

Accordingly, it was agreed that consideration of the minutes of the Kent 
Health and Wellbeing Board held on 16 March 2016 be noted without 
discussion.

72. URGENT ITEMS 



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 6 APRIL 2016

2

It was noted that there were no urgent items for the Board to consider.

73. ACTIONS OUTSTANDING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

The Board received a report on work issues which were outstanding from 
previous meetings and noted that a number had been added to the Board’s 
work plan.

Arising from this it was noted that the request for funding from the Violence 
Reduction Initiative in Dartford and Gravesham had been drawn to the 
attention of local Community Safety Partnership for consideration and that 
should funding be withdrawn from the Initiative, Community Safety 
Partnerships would look provide funding for this.

74. UPDATE ON PUBLIC COMMISSIONING PROGRAMMES 

At the meeting of the Board held on 7 October 2015 Karen Sharp, Head of 
Commissioning, Public Health, reported on a new direction being undertaken 
in Public Health Commissioning in Kent, which involved a move away from 
the currently favoured multi track individual specialist treatment approach to 
an holistic approach where more generically trained staff provided the 
necessary support and counselling services.  

Following on from that report the Board received an update from Ms Sharp on 
the progress of the reviews being undertaken into the services which were 
commissioned from the Public Health Grant.

The Board noted that the services under review were 

 Services for children, including the Health Visiting service, 

 School Public Health (school nursing) service; and, 

 Core public health programmes for adults, including healthy weight, 
health trainers and smoking cessation services. 

It was reported that a number of consultation events and assessments had 
taken place in the past few months with stakeholders and that currently the 
tendering of all these services had been halted to allow for reviews of 
resources and further consultation between with Kent County Council, 
providers and partners

The Board agreed to note the progress made.

75. KENT ALCOHOL STRATEGY: UPDATE 

The Board received reports on the Kent Alcohol Strategy, which was launched 
in April 2014 and the progress which has been achieved in its implementation 



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 6 APRIL 2016

3

across Kent to far, together with an update on the progress of the Strategy in 
the Board area.

Val Miller provided an update on the Kent wide strategy, on behalf of Linda 
Smith, KCC public health, and highlighted the following headline issues

 The introduction of multi - agency alcohol plans in all districts in Kent

 The falling trend for alcohol related hospital admissions amongst under 
18 year olds

 The growth in alcohol advice being given to Kent residents by trained 
professionals

 Significant improvements in the quality of alcohol related services 
resulting from progress in commissioning strategies, policy 
developments, data sharing agreements between health 
commissioning bodies and service providers for individuals with both 
mental health and substance misuse issues.

 The introduction of “Know Your Score” in January 2016.

 Acknowledgement of the work of Kent Community Alcohol Partnerships 
by ministerial visits to relevant areas in north Kent.

 The inclusion of alcohol screening in several public Health 
commissioning contracts.

 The introduction of development of alcohol care pathways and the 
inclusion of health related data into the licensing process into the work 
programme for this year.

Additionally Adam Green provided a detailed verbal report on the work 
undertaken by the commissioned provider dealing with Alcohol related issues 
in the Board area.

Having noted the information provided and the verbal report from Mr Green 
the Board agreed to receive a final report on the Alcohol Strategy in 12 
months - time.

76. DEMENTIA FRIENDLY COMMUNITY AUDITS: RESULTS AND ANALYSIS 

Tracy Schneider, reported on the progress made by the Dementia Friendly 
Communities programme which has been operating since May 2013, together 
with an update on a recent workshop event held at Longfield Academy.   



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 6 APRIL 2016

4

The Board was informed that three smaller forums have been established:-
Swanley and the Northern parishes, Dartford, and Gravesham to consider 
matters on a more local level and the following work has been undertaken.. 

Swanley and Northern Parishes: There have been two smaller open 
information events in Swanley, one at the Orchards academy and one in the 
Town Council rooms.  Awareness raising and environment have been a large 
focus in this area and a 3rd event will be held this May in Hextable during 
dementia awareness week.. 

Dartford: An awareness event was held at Temple Hill in 2015 and events are 
planned for dementia awareness week. Front Line staff from Dartford Borough 
Council had attended dementia awareness training sessions.  Alterations 
have been made to the Town Centre Shop Safe scheme to open it to those 
with dementia, and the scheme will now become a Shop Safe - Stay Safe 
scheme.

Gravesham: Gravesham has adopted the Dartford Shop Safe - Stay Safe 
Scheme and now work in Gravesham is looking at encouraging a dementia 
friendly shopping centre and High Street.  Local schools have also been 
involved in the dementia work.

The event at Longfield Academy sought to inform local residents regarding 
Dementia and how it manifested itself, what help was available, and how to 
deal with specific issues.

The Board thanked Ms Schneider for her presentation and noted the contents 
of the reports.

77. DEMENTIA CARE PATHWAY AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

The Board received a report which provided an overview of the range of 
initiatives which are currently underway across Dartford, Gravesham and 
Swanley to help improve access to a timely diagnosis of dementia and to 
ensure that people affected by dementia, both patients and carers are 
supported to live well with dementia and avoid unnecessary crisis events. 

The report also outlined an initiative that was in progress to develop a 
dementia/cognitive impairment community hub, which it was hoped, would 
provide an excellent opportunity for partnership working between health and 
the voluntary sector to deliver an integrated, local community service to make 
sure the right services are in place for the local population.

It was noted that there were currently some concerns amongst the voluntary 
sector regarding the fragmentation of services for those with dementia and the 
high levels of “churn” amongst social service staff making continuity of care 
somewhat difficult.

The Board noted the report. 



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 6 APRIL 2016

5

78. UPDATE ON THE IMPLICATIONS OF NEW DEVELOPMENTS FOR THE 
HEALTH SECTOR AND THE NEW SHAPE OF SERVICE PROVISION. 

The Board was informed that the Kent Health and Wellbeing Board had 
recently received a report which provided an overview of the recently launched 
Kent and Medway Growth and Infrastructure Framework (GIF), and an associated 
action plan. 

The GIF was developed in response to the growing pressure on local authorities to 
deliver housing and economic growth and the necessity to provide improvements and 
additions to physical and social infrastructure to support the growth.

The Report sought to obtain the Kent Board’s input to the development of the GIF, 
with a view to strengthening particularly the health and social care infrastructure 
evidence base and using it to help shape health infrastructure provision to support 
housing growth.

The Kent Board recognised, amongst other things, that a sound statistical 
base was required to allow for informed plans to be formulated and decisions 
to be taken.

Accordingly our Board received a presentation and report on the GIF and the 
progress in its implementation from Ms Stephanie Holt, Head of Countryside 
Leisure and Sport Group of KCC Planning and Enforcement.

It was noted that Mrs Stock was currently working with KCC to ensure that 
robust accurate data was being provided by the CCG to help with the 
formulation of the GIF, but that other data sources were required.

Accordingly it was suggested that liaison with planning policy officers from 
each of the three constituent local authorities would be beneficial and that the 
help of the CCG Local Estates Forum could be elicited. 

The Chairman thanked Ms Holt for her report and presentation and the Board 
agreed to note the content of each.

79. OBESITY UPDATE 

A brief update on the work of the Obesity initiative was given to the Board by 
Val Miller, together with the latest version of the Obesity Plan Mapping 
Template.

Ms Miller reported that the Obesity Plan Mapping Template was now largely 
complete but that the follow areas required further attention.

 Social Care data – further consultation with care providers was 
necessary



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 6 APRIL 2016

6

 Kent County Council Public Health involvement – Input from Andrew 
Scott – Clarke was required

 The impact of Type II Diabetes needed to be added to the Template.

The Board noted the Template and the work undertaken so far.

80. MEMBER AVAILABILITY FOR A BOARD MEETING IN AUGUST. 

Following enquiries regarding the availability of Members to attend the 
scheduled Board meeting on 10 August 2016, it became apparent that a 
significant number of the Board could not attend on that date.

It was therefore agreed that Board Members be canvassed to ascertain their 
availability on either the 3rd or 17th of August 2016 to allow the meeting to be 
re arranged.

81. INFORMATION EXCHANGE 

There was no information for dissemination to other Members.

82. BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 

The Board received and noted the schedule of work programmed to be 
considered at its meetings in the current year together with a list of items still 
to be scheduled.

It was also agreed that consideration of the Local Children’s Partnership 
Groups be asked to consider the Kent Teenaged Pregnancy Strategy in the 
course of its work monitoring delivery of the Children’s and Young People’s 
Plan. 



AGENDA

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Wednesday, 25th May, 2016, at 6.30 pm Ask for: Ann Hunter

Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone

Telephone 03000 416287

Refreshments will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting 

Membership 

Mr R W Gough (Chairman), Dr F Armstrong, Mr I Ayres, Dr B Bowes (Vice-Chairman), 
Dr J Bryant, Ms H Carpenter, Mr P B Carter, CBE, Ms F Cox, Ms P Davies, 
Mr G K Gibbens, Mr S Inett, Mr A Ireland, Dr N Kumta, Dr E Lunt, Dr T Martin, 
Mr P J Oakford, Mr S Perks, Dr S Phillips, Cllr K Pugh, Mr A Scott-Clark, Dr R Stewart, 
Cllr P Watkins and Cllr L Weatherly

Webcasting Notice

Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for the live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council’s internet site or by any member of the public or press present.   The Chairman will 
confirm if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed by the Council.

By entering into this room you are consenting to being filmed.  If you do not wish to have 
your image captured please let the Clerk know immediately

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1 Chairman's Welcome 
 

2 Apologies and Substitutes 

To receive apologies for absence and notification of any 
substitutes

3 Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the agenda for this meeting 



To receive any declarations of Interest by Members in items on 
the agenda for the meeting

4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 March 2016 (Pages 5 - 8)

To receive and agree the minutes of the last meeting

5 Draft Sustainability and Transformation Plans - Presentation 
 

6 The Kent Better Care Fund (Pages 9 - 36)

To receive a paper that presents the final submission of the 
Kent Better Care Fund Plan (KBCF) 2016/17, the approval 
process and development of the S75 Agreement as well as the 
final outturn position for the KBCF 2015/16

7 Workforce Task and Finish Group - Final Report and Recommendations 
(Pages 37 - 50)

To receive a report that summarises the findings of the 
Workforce Task and Finish Group, including the five priority 
areas identified to take forward as well as an outline of the 
indicative action plan

8 Addressing Obesity: Progress Report from Local Health and Wellbeing 
Boards (Pages 51 - 60)

To note the progress made in addressing obesity by local health 
and wellbeing boards and to comment on the proposed 
recommendations

9 Abridged Kent Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) Overview Report 
2016 (Pages 61 - 72)

To comment on the key strategic findings of the refreshed JSNA 
Overview Report 2016 and endorse the priorities

10 Forward work programme of the Board (Pages 73 - 76)

To receive a report setting out a proposed Forward Work 
Programme for the Board

11 Minutes of the 0-25 Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages 77 - 90)



To note the minutes of the 0-25 Health and Wellbeing Board 
meetings held on 12 January and 22 March 2016

12 Minutes of the Local Health and Wellbeing Boards (Pages 91 - 136)

To note the minutes of local health and wellbeing boards as 
follows:

Ashford – 23 March 2016
Canterbury and Coastal – 9 March 2016
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley – 6 April 2016
South Kent Coast –  26 January 2016
Swale – 27 January 2016
Thanet – 24 March 2016
West Kent – 19 April 2016

13 Date of Next Meeting - 20 July 2016 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services 
03000 416647

Tuesday, 17 May 2016





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

8 June 2016
 

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group (Member Services) 

Subject: Action Points Arising From Previous Meeting(s) of the DGS HWB

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
The report details progress against action points arising from the previous meeting(s).

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Note the action points arising from previous meeting(s) and subsequent action, and 
consider whether any item should be added to the forward work plan to enable a more 
detailed discussion at a future meeting.

1. Background and discussion

Meeting first 
raised

Minute/Item Action taken/to be taken Lead

24/2/2016 Min 59 – 
Regeneration in 
Swanley

Board to investigate availability of grant 
funding for sports clubs etc to 
encourage participation by young 
people 

District 
Councils

Min 61 – Violence 
Reduction Initiative

NHS England funding confirmed for 
this year and project initiated at DVH. 
CSP to monitor - Done

CSP

6/4/2016 Min 75 – Alcohol 
Strategy: Update

Board to receive final report June 2017 
– added to Work Plan - Done

Min 80 – Availability 
for August meeting

Board members to be canvassed for 
alternate dates - Done

N.Murphy

1 Conclusion and Recommendations
The Board is asked to:

Note the action points arising from previous meeting(s) and subsequent action, and 
consider whether any additional item should be added to the forward work plan to 
enable a more detailed discussion at a future meeting, or any other action taken.



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

8 June 2016
 

______________________________________________________________________________

2

3 Contact details

Neil Murphy, Committee Coordinator, Dartford Borough Council, 
email: neil.murphy @dartford.gov.uk

4. Background Papers - None



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 N/A 96.9 Sevenoaks 21.3 Thanet 118.2 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 N/A 44.6
Tunbridge 
Wells

10.5 Shepway 55.1 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0 N/A 0.0 #N/A 0.0 #N/A 0.0 M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 N/A 16.7 Sevenoaks 15.0 Canterbury 31.7 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 N/A 73.6 Sevenoaks 30.0 Thanet 103.6 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 21.9 22.5 BELOW 5.6 Canterbury 20.0 Dartford 25.6 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 33.2 32.8 ABOVE 11.4 Sevenoaks 27.5 Gravesham 38.9 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 74.3 71.3 BELOW 20.9

Tunbridge 
Wells

84.7 Swale 63.8 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.22 N/A 14.5 Maidstone 11.7 Dover 26.2 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 25.96 N/A 21.6 Sevenoaks 13.8 Dover 35.4 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 66.3 73 ABOVE 14.4
Tunbridge 
Wells

78.3 Gravesham 63.9 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80 80 EQUAL 10.6 Sevenoaks 85.5 Gravesham 74.9 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 53.8 57.3 ABOVE 35.1
Tunbridge 
Wells

74.9 Sevenoaks 39.8 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5 N/A 2.5 Ashford 3.9 Gravesham 6.4 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 N/A 3.7
Tunbridge 
Wells

5.4 Gravesham 9.1 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 N/A 8.4 Dartford 8.9 Ashford 17.3 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.24 N/A 23.6 Maidstone 16.6 Canterbury 40.2 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0 N/A 0.0 #N/A 0.0 #N/A 0.0 M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 24.3 22.9 ABOVE 21.9 Sevenoaks 13.7 Thanet 35.6 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

LEARN & HAVE 
OPPORTUNITIES TO ACHIEVE 
THROUGHOUT THEIR LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE 
DECISIONS

H
ig
he
st
 ra

nk
in
g 
di
st
ric
t 

("
be

st
")

Ra
te
 in
 h
ig
he

st
 ra

nk
in
g 

di
st
ric
t

Lo
w
es
t r
an
ki
ng

 d
is
tr
ic
t

Ra
te
 in
 lo
w
es
t r
an
ki
ng

 
di
st
ric
t

Ra
ng
e 
(d
iff
er
en
ce
 

be
tw

ee
n 
hi
gh
es
t a

nd
 

lo
w
es
t r
an
ki
ng

 d
is
tr
ic
ts
)

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, 
MENTAL & EMOTIONAL 

HEALTH

CYPP COUNTY DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

KENT

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

En
gl
an
d

KE
N
T

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 E
ng
la
nd

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 76.8 BELOW 9 M Jan‐16

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 35.2 BELOW 8 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 23.4 BELOW 7 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 48.5 4 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 23.6 BELOW 8 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 34.0 BELOW 8 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 71.3 EQUAL 5 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 20.2 BELOW 9 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 25.2 5 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 73.2 ABOVE 7 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 77.8 BELOW 11 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 52.2 BELOW 9 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 3.9 ABOVE 1 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 6.0 ABOVE 3 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 17.3 BELOW 12 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 29.7 BELOW 8 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 23.5 BELOW 7 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

DateAi
m

Ke
nt

As
hf
or
d

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y

Unit of Measurement

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

ASHFORD



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 103.8 BELOW 11 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 34.5 BELOW 7 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 31.7 BELOW 12 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 50.2 5 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 20.0 ABOVE 1 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 33.1 BELOW 6 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 74.9 ABOVE 4 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 23.0 BELOW 11 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 31.5 9 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 73.6 ABOVE 6 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 81.8 ABOVE 4 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 52.5 BELOW 8 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 5.3 BELOW 9 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 7.2 BELOW 7 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 13.6 ABOVE 5 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 40.2 BELOW 12 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 21.8 ABOVE 5 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

CANTERBURY

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

Ca
nt
er
bu

ry

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 22.3 ABOVE 2 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 21.5 ABOVE 5 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 17.9 ABOVE 5 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 62.5 7 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 25.6 BELOW 12 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 35.6 BELOW 11 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 66.8 BELOW 7 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 16.9 ABOVE 4 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 15.2 2 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 72.5 BELOW 8 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 82.0 ABOVE 3 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 68.1 ABOVE 2 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 4.7 ABOVE 6 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 8.0 BELOW 10 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 8.9 ABOVE 1 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 27.9 BELOW 7 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 19.5 ABOVE 4 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

DARTFORD

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

D
ar
tf
or
d

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 57.4 ABOVE 6 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 29.6 ABOVE 6 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 23.4 BELOW 7 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 69.4 8 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 24.5 BELOW 10 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 33.5 BELOW 7 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 * #VALUE! ##### A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 26.2 BELOW 12 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 35.4 12 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 73.9 ABOVE 5 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 81.1 ABOVE 5 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 53.9 BELOW 6 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 4.4 ABOVE 4 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 6.7 ABOVE 5 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 14.5 BELOW 7 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 36.2 BELOW 11 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 30.3 BELOW 11 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

DOVER

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

D
ov
er

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 64.0 ABOVE 8 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 36.4 BELOW 9 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 27.2 BELOW 9 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 84.8 10 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 22.5 EQUAL 6 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 38.9 BELOW 12 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 * #VALUE! ##### A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 17.6 ABOVE 7 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 31.5 8 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 63.9 BELOW 12 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 74.9 BELOW 12 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 60.7 ABOVE 4 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 6.4 BELOW 12 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 9.1 BELOW 12 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 14.5 BELOW 7 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 21.7 ABOVE 4 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 26.3 BELOW 9 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

GRAVESHAM

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

G
ra
ve
sh
am

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 36.2 ABOVE 5 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 20.0 ABOVE 4 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 17.0 ABOVE 3 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 52.6 6 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 20.6 ABOVE 2 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 31.5 ABOVE 4 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 75.8 ABOVE 3 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 11.7 ABOVE 1 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 17.9 3 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 75.8 ABOVE 3 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 80.9 ABOVE 6 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 62.7 ABOVE 3 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 5.0 EQUAL 7 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 7.2 BELOW 7 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 13.1 ABOVE 3 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 16.6 ABOVE 1 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 15.6 ABOVE 3 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

MAIDSTONE

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

M
ai
ds
to
ne

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 21.3 ABOVE 1 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 12.0 ABOVE 2 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 15.0 ABOVE 1 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 30.0 1 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 20.6 ABOVE 2 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 27.5 ABOVE 1 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 * #VALUE! A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 16.9 ABOVE 5 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 13.8 1 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 76.7 ABOVE 2 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 85.5 ABOVE 1 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 39.8 BELOW 12 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 4.3 ABOVE 2 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 6.3 ABOVE 4 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 15.2 BELOW 11 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 26.5 ABOVE 6 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 13.7 ABOVE 1 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

SEVENOAKS

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

Se
ve
no

ak
s

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 94.4 BELOW 10 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 55.1 BELOW 12 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 29.4 BELOW 11 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 70.0 9 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 23.7 BELOW 9 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 34.8 BELOW 9 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 70.7 BELOW 6 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 21.9 BELOW 10 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 33.6 11 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 70.4 BELOW 11 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 79.7 BELOW 8 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 50.3 BELOW 10 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 4.3 ABOVE 2 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 7.0 ABOVE 6 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 14.9 BELOW 10 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 25.7 ABOVE 5 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 25.8 BELOW 8 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

SHEPWAY

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

Sh
ep

w
ay

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 57.9 ABOVE 7 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 50.0 BELOW 11 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 21.0 ABOVE 6 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 84.9 11 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 23.4 BELOW 7 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 32.6 ABOVE 5 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 63.8 BELOW 9 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 20.1 BELOW 8 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 32.1 10 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 72.0 BELOW 9 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 79.3 BELOW 9 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 53.7 BELOW 7 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 6.3 BELOW 11 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 8.3 BELOW 11 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 13.9 BELOW 6 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 30.8 BELOW 9 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 27.4 BELOW 10 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

SWALE

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

Sw
al
e

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 118.2 BELOW 12 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 48.3 BELOW 10 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 27.2 BELOW 9 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 103.6 12 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 24.6 BELOW 11 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 35.1 BELOW 10 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 66.7 BELOW 8 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 17.5 ABOVE 6 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 21.5 4 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 71.1 BELOW 10 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 77.9 BELOW 10 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 40.9 BELOW 11 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 5.3 BELOW 9 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 7.7 BELOW 9 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 12.8 ABOVE 2 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 32.3 BELOW 10 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 35.6 BELOW 12 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

THANET

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

Th
an

et

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 26.2 ABOVE 3 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 15.7 ABOVE 3 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 16.5 ABOVE 2 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 44.0 3 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 20.8 ABOVE 5 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 28.7 ABOVE 2 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 76.9 ABOVE 2 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 13.2 ABOVE 2 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 25.5 6 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 75.7 ABOVE 4 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 82.5 ABOVE 2 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 59.1 ABOVE 5 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 4.4 ABOVE 4 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 5.9 ABOVE 2 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 14.7 BELOW 9 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 20.4 ABOVE 2 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 22.8 ABOVE 6 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

TONBRDIGE AND MALLING

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

To
nb

rid
ge

 a
nd

 M
al
lin
g

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y



CYPP OUTCOMES:
Children and young people… CYPP INDICATORS

1 Children on a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 under 18 L 74.4 30.0 ABOVE 4 M Jan‐16

2 Children in Care (exc. UASC) per 10,000 under 18 L 32.1 10.5 ABOVE 1 M Jan‐16

3 Missing Children AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M Jan‐16

4 Early Help Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 22.1 17.4 ABOVE 4 M Jan‐16

5 Domestic Abuse Notifications per 10,000 under 18 L 62.8 31.2 2 Q Q3: 2015/16

6A Excess Weight (Reception) % of 4‐5 year olds L 22.5 20.7 ABOVE 4 A 2014/15

6B Excess Weight (Year 6) % of 10‐11 year olds L 32.8 29.5 ABOVE 3 A 2014/15

7 Breastfeeding (Initiation)
% of new mothers 

(48 hrs after delivery)
H 71.3 84.7 ABOVE 1 A 2014/15

8 Self‐Harm Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 18.2 16.5 ABOVE 3 M 2014/15

9 Early Help Notifications about Mental Health per 10,000 under 18 L 26.0 26.8 7 M Feb‐16

10 Early Years Foundation Stage Profile % of pupils H 73.0 78.3 ABOVE 1 A 2014/15

11 Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 % of pupils H 80.0 80.7 ABOVE 7 A 2014/15

12 GCSEs (5 A*‐C including Maths & English) % of pupils H 57.3 74.9 ABOVE 1 A 2014/15

13 Young People not in Education, Employment or Training % 16‐18 year olds L 5.0 5.1 BELOW 8 M Jan‐16

14A Persistent School Absence (Primary) % pupils L 7.1 5.4 ABOVE 1 A 2014/15

14B Persistent School Absence (Secondary) % pupils L 13.7 13.2 ABOVE 4 A 2014/15

15 Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions
per 10,000 under 18 
(Annual Forecast)

L 27.2 20.7 ABOVE 3 M 2014/15

16 First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System AWAITING DATA L 0.0 0.0 EQUAL #N/A M 0

17 Teenage Conception % 15‐17 year old girls L 22.9 13.8 ABOVE 2 A 2013

DRAFT v0.4

Date

GROW UP IN SAFE FAMILIES & 
COMMUNITIES

HAVE GOOD PHYSICAL, MENTAL & 
EMOTIONAL HEALTH

CYPP DISTRICT DASHBOARD
(Number 1: April 2016)

TUNBRIDGE WELLS

Unit of Measurement Ai
m

Ke
nt

Tu
nb

rid
ge

 W
el
ls

Co
m
pa
ris
on

 to
 K
en

t

LEARN & HAVE OPPORTUNITIES TO 
ACHIEVE THROUGHOUT THEIR 

LIVES 

MAKE SAFE & POSITIVE DECISIONS

Ra
nk
 a
m
on

gs
t d

ist
ric
ts
 

(1
 =
 'b
es
t')

M
ov
em

en
t s
in
ce
 la
st
 

Da
sh
bo

ar
d

Fr
eq

ue
nc
y





Kent Children and Young People’s Plan: 
Working Together to Improve Outcomes 

2016 – 2019 

DRAFT v0.2 
21/03/16 



Introduction and background 1 

Children and young people grow up in safe families and communities 3 

Indicator 1: Children on a Child Protection Plan 4 

Indicator 2: Children in Care 5 

Indicator 3: Missing Children 6 

Indicator 4: Early Help Notifications 7 

Indicator 5: Domestic Abuse Notifications 8 

Children and young people have good physical, mental and emotional health 9 

Indicator 6: Excess Weight  10 

Indicator 7: Breastfeeding 11 

Indicator 8: Self-Harm Related Hospital Admissions 12 

Indicator 9: Early Help Notifications about Mental Health 13 

Children and young people learn & have opportunities to achieve throughout 

their lives 
14 

Indicator 10: Early Years Foundation Stage Profile 15 

Indicator 11: Reading, Writing & Maths at Key Stage 2 16 

Indicator 12: GCSEs (5 A*-C including Maths & English) 17 

Indicator 13: Young People not in Education, Employment or Training 18 

Indicator 14: Persistent School Absence 19 

Children and young people make safe and positive decisions 20 

Indicator 15: Drug and Alcohol Related Hospital Admissions 21 

Indicator 16: First Time Entry to the Youth Justice System 22 

Indicator 17: Teenage Conception 23 

Delivering the CYPP 24 

References and data sources 25 

Contents 



Introduction and Background 

• The Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) sets out the shared ambition of public and voluntary 

sector partners to improve the lives of children and young people growing up in Kent. 

• The CYPP provides clarity for all partners about the most important overarching outcomes for 

children and young people. It also provides coherent and meaningful ways to measure progress 

towards those outcomes. 

• This plan will be used by partnership groups to drive activity  focussed on improving outcomes at 

local and county level. 

Who produced the Children and Young People’s Plan? 

• The CYPP has been developed by the 0-25 Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) and Kent’s twelve 

district-level Local Children’s Partnership Groups (LCPGs). 

• These groups of partners have been working together over a six month period, sharing their 

specialist knowledge and experience to reach a shared understanding of the most important 

outcomes for children, young people and families in Kent. 

 

 
Local Children’s Partnership Groups 

• LCPGs ensure a consistent approach to 

partnership working at district level across Kent. 

They provide a connection between countywide 

strategic bodies and those working with children 

and young people at a local level.  

• A wide range of services are represented within 

LCPGs. These include District/Borough Councils, 

Children’s Social Care, Early Help, schools, Public 

Health, CCGs and the Police. 

•  Each LCPG meets six times a year to plan 

activity and monitor progress. They regularly 

feed into 0-25 HWB. 

 

The 0-25 Health and Wellbeing Board 

• The 0-25 HWB is Kent’s principal partnership 

group that brings agencies together at county-

level to improve outcomes for children and 

young people.  

• Senior managers and decision makers, including 

elected members, form the membership of the 

0-25 HWB. The 0-25 HWB reports to the Kent 

HWB whose remit includes adults and children. 

• The 0-25 HWB co-ordinated the development of 

the CYPP. They will also oversee its delivery and 

hold LCPGs to account. 

 

 

What information went into the CYPP? 

• Information from three main sources has been gathered, analysed and reviewed by the 0-25 HWB 

and the LCPGs in an iterative process taking place over the last six months. Those sources are: 

 

 

 

• Local knowledge has been contributed throughout the process by LCPG members, who have an in-

depth understanding of issues and concerns in the communities in their respective districts.  

• Because LCPGs have a varied membership, the local expertise of professionals from many fields, 

including: health, social care, education, community safety, housing, early help and the voluntary 

sector; have informed this plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Knowledge Statistical Data 
Views of Children, Young 

People & Families 

1 



Introduction and Background 

Views Of Children, Young People and Families  

• View from each district have been gathered through informal engagement. 

• Over 200 responses were collected from children aged 2 – 18 years, and their parents, expressing 

their views on a wide range of aspects of growing up in Kent. 

• This information has been used to inform the development of this plan and will also be used by 

LCPGs to inform its delivery. LCPGs are committed to the continued engagement of  

children, young people and families in their work.  

• The views that have been gathered are included throughout this document. 

 

 

 
How does the Children and Young People’s Plan work? 

• The CYPP has been developed using a method called Outcome Based Accountability (OBA).  In 

coming together to produce the CYPP, partners wanted to ensure that they maintained a shared, 

unrelenting focus on improving outcomes for children and young people in Kent. 

• OBA offers a framework which supports this focus, beginning with the development of a set of 

mutually agreed outcomes. 

 

 

 

• Outcomes are not about how well services perform, or about results achieved by specific individuals, 

they are what we aspire to for ALL children and young people. 

• The CYPP Outcomes were developed collaboratively and  reflect a vision shared by all partners within 

the 0-25 HWB and LCPGs, they take account of all aspects of a child’s life, they are: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• In order to measure progress towards the achievement of these outcomes, a small number of 

indicators have been selected which use statistical data to monitor specific aspects of each outcome. 

 

 

 

• These indicators have been carefully selected because they use good quality, reliable data and 

because they meaningfully represent areas within each outcome which have been prioritised by 

LCPGs and the 0-25 HWB. 

• The next section of this document is divided into four parts, one for each CYPP Outcome and sets 

out each outcome’s associated indicators. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OUTCOME A condition of wellbeing we want for all children and young people in Kent 

GROW UP IN SAFE 

FAMILIES & 

COMMUNITIES 

LEARN & HAVE 

OPPORTUNITIES 

TO ACHIEVE 

THROUGHOUT 

THEIR LIVES 

HAVE GOOD 

PHYSICAL, 

MENTAL & 

EMOTIONAL 

HEALTH 

MAKE SAFE & 

POSITIVE 

DECISIONS 

Children and Young People… 

INDICATOR A measure which tells us something about the achievement of an outcome 

2 



Children and Young People  

Grow Up in Safe Families and Communities 

• This outcome relates to children and young people being safe at home with their families, it also 

considers issues around safeguarding within the wider community. 

• Key areas of concern relating to being safe at home which have been identified are domestic abuse, 

family breakdown, housing issues, parental mental health and parenting confidence. 

• In the wider community, the keys issues identified in the development of the CYPP were child sexual 

exploitation, gangs and radicalisation. Road safety was also identified as a key issue in some districts. 

• FIVE INDICATORS which demonstrate different aspects of this outcome have been identified : 

CHILDREN IN CARE 

MISSING CHILDREN 

DOMESTIC ABUSE NOTIFICATIONS 

EARLY HELP NOTIFICATIONS 

CHILDREN ON A CHILD PROTECTION PLAN 

Views of Children, Young People and Families  

• Children and young people were asked to identify what might stop them feeling safe,  

and the most common response was bullying.  

• Gangs and groups of people hanging around  were also common themes. Female adolescents in 

particular identified concerns around personal safety out in the community. 

 

 

• Young people commonly expressed that they would feel more safe if there were more street lights 

and if there was greater and more visible police presence in the community. 

• Parents’ concerns included safe use of social media and road safety, in particular speed limits. They 

identified love as the most important protective factor to keep a child safe. 

 

 

 

Being alone when I’m out, especially 
when it’s dark.  Female, 16, Canterbury 

Intimidating men usually out in the evenings, who won’t leave you 
alone, or make you nervous or threatened. Female, 17, Swale  

Existing activity relating to this Outcome 

Some examples of existing projects and activities delivering improvements in this outcome are: 

• Kent Safeguarding Children Board (KSCB) oversees  and supports all agencies working with children 

and young people to ensure that required safeguarding services are in place. 

• The KSCB includes a Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation Group, and a group that focuses on gangs, 

radicalisation and missing children. 

• Operation Willow, led by Kent Police and the KSCB, raises awareness of child sexual exploitation in the 

county. It ensures the public, and specific groups such as taxi drivers, hoteliers and shop keepers 

know how to identify and report concerns. 

• A KSCB task-force is providing training to agencies across Kent to enable them to explain online 

safeguarding risks to parents, carers and young people. 

• A partnership Delivery Board is in place to prevent radicalisation in the county. A monthly panel is in 

place to identify and support people vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism 

 3 



Children and Young People  

Grow Up in Safe Families and Communities 

Indicator 1: CHILDREN ON A CHILD PROTECTION PLAN 

What is a Child Protection Plan? 

• A Child Protection (CP) Plan is put in place when there are serious concerns that a child is at risk of 

significant harm as a result of neglect or abuse. 

• The multi-agency plan sets out what support the family will receive from different services (such as 

social care, school, health visitors) as well expectations of parents. 

• Children on a CP Plan are regularly visited by their social worker and progress is monitored by a 

group of professionals from different services. 

• A child will remain on a CP Plan until the level of risk has reduced, or if the situation does not 

improve, further intervention may be required. 

• There are four categories of CP Plan which identify 

the reason the child is at risk. The table (right)  

shows the initial category of all plans in Kent that  

were in place on 31 March 2015, compared to the overall proportions in England. 

 

 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

C
h

ild
re

n
 o

n
 C

P
 P

la
n

 p
er

 1
0

,0
0

0
 (

3
1

.0
1

.1
5

) 

England

• Data on Child Protection Plans is collected and 

published nationally by the Government (DfE). 

• This graph shows the rate of children who were 

the subject of a CP Plan on 31 March 2015 per 

10,000 children. 

• It benchmarks Kent against its statistical 

neighbours and England. The rate in Kent is 

lower than the England average. 

• Nationally, there has been an increase in the 

rate of CP Plans each year for the last six years. 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• KCC Specialist Children’s Services (SCS) regularly collect and publish data for each district about 

children on a CP Plan. This data will be shared with LCPGs every two months. 

• The aim is to work together to reduce the need for CP Plans to be put in place by reducing risk and 

intervening as early as possible so that concerns do not escalate to a point where a CP Plan is 

necessary. 

• It is important to understand that there will remain situations where CP Plans are needed in order to 

keep children safe, the aim is to safely minimise the number of these situations, not simply to cut 

the number of CP Plans. 

• LCPGs will be supported to understand the figures for their area and what they mean so that 

partners can work together to address the root causes of situations which put children at risk. 

 

1 

% of plans Neglect 
Physical 
Abuse 

Sexual 
Abuse 

Emotional 
Abuse 

Multiple 

England 44.7 8.8 4.7 33.5 8.3 

Kent 60.1 7.6 3.8 17.5 11.0 

1 

Data for 2014/15 

4 



Children and Young People  

Grow Up in Safe Families and Communities 

Indicator 2: CHILDREN IN CARE 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

C
h

ild
re

n
 in

 c
ar

e 
p

er
 1

0
,0

0
0

 u
n

d
er

 1
8

s 

Statistical Neighbours England Kent

What does this Indicator tell us? 

• A child or young person in care is one who is 

looked after by the local authority because it is no 

longer possible for them live at home safely. 

• A child may be placed into care voluntarily by 

parents who are struggling to cope; or as a result 

of a legal order made by the court. 

• Children in care may live with foster carers or in a 

residential placement, depending on their 

particular needs or circumstances. 

• A child leaves care if they become adopted; if they 

are able to safely return home because of a 

change in the situation, or until they turn 18. 

• KCC have responsibility for all children in care in 

Kent and maintain accurate data which is used for 

this indicator. 

 
• Data on Children in Care is collected and 

published nationally by the Government (DfE). 

• This graph shows the rate of Children in Care 

(on 31 March each year) for Kent, its statistical 

neighbours, and England. 

• The rate of Children in Care gradually has 

increased nationally over the last 5 years.  

• The rate in Kent is lower than the England 

figure, but is higher than its statistical 

neighbours. 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• As with Children on a CP Plan, it is important to understand that whilst partners seek at all times to 

enable children and young people to safely remain at home with their families, the welfare of the child 

is paramount and there will remain situations where taking a child into care is necessary. 

• The aim is for partners to work together with families to enable them to provide a safe and 

supportive home environment where children and young people are able to remain. 

• Remaining informed about the picture across the country, and statistical neighbours, will enable 

LCPGs to contextualise local rates.  

• LCPGs will also be able to explore the factors locally which lead to a child entering care and work 

together to reduce their occurrence and hence the escalation of need. 

 

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children  

• Because of its geographical position, a larger 

number of people who enter the UK seeking 

asylum arrive in Kent than other areas. 

• By law, unaccompanied children, and young 

people (under 18) seeking asylum become 

Children in Care  at the place of their arrival. 

• As a result, there is a large number of 

unaccompanied asylum seeking children in 

care in Kent. This is a significant challenge 

for KCC which is being actively addressed. 

• Because of the unique circumstances of 

UASC, and because the issues leading to 

their becoming looked after cannot be 

addressed by local partners, this indicator 

excludes figures for UASC. 

 

 

5 



Children and Young People  

Grow Up in Safe Families and Communities 

Indicator 3: MISSING CHILDREN 

Why is this Indicator important? 

• As well as the immediate risks to safety of going missing, it 

can also be an indication of other serious concerns. 

• Running away could be an indication of problems at home 

that are putting the child’s safety at risk, for example, 

abuse or neglect, or challenging relationships amongst 

family members. 

• There is evidence of a link between going missing and 

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE). 

• Going missing has been identified as both a ‘push’ and 

‘pull’ factor in relation to CSE. That is, children and young 

people who go missing are at increased risk of being 

sexually exploited; and those who are being sexually 

exploited are more likely to run away. 

• There are also demonstrable links between going missing 

and involvement in gangs, which similarly can be a result 

or a cause of a child going missing. 

• A further connection with using and selling drugs has been 

identified , with evidence of young people temporarily 

moving into different areas in order to sell drugs. 

• Making an improvement on this indicator, therefore will 

also tell us that we are making an improvement in relation 

to these other areas of risk identified. 

 

What does this Indicator measure? 

• The Government defines a missing 

child as a child reported as missing 

to the police by their family or 

carers. 

• When a child is reported missing, 

the police inform the local 

authority, who share responsibility 

for safeguarding the child. 

• Part of this responsibility is 

collecting and analysing data about 

children going missing, which is 

shared with partners and the KSCB. 

• The data collected includes a range 

of information about children 

going missing, including the age 

and location of each child that is 

reported missing. 

• This indicator counts the number 

of missing episodes (i.e. occasions 

when a child is reported missing) 

during a month, and will be 

reported at district-level to LCPGs. 

 

 
Unknown to SCS (33%)

Children in Care (exc. UASC) (22%)

Children in Need (18%)

CiC from Other Local Authorities (16%)

UASC (6%)

Children on a CP Plan (5%)

0

50

100

150

0-4 5-9 10-12 13-15 16-17C
h

ild
re

n
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 m
is

si
n

g 

Age in Years 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• To keep and children and young people safe from the many risks associated with going missing, the 

aim is to reduce this indicator as much as possible. 

• Most children who are reported missing are already known to Specialist Children’s Services, including 

many children who are in care. But around a third (in Jan 16) are not known to SCS. 

• LCPGs will use local intelligence to explore the specific issues in their local districts, including any 

specific areas in the community where missing children may go, to plan a partnership approach to 

reducing this indicator. 

The charts show all missing children in Kent in January 2016, giving a snapshot of their characteristics. 

6 



Children and Young People  

Grow Up in Safe Families and Communities 

Indicator 4: EARLY HELP NOTIFICATIONS 

What are Early Help Notifications? 

• When a practitioner or a member of the public has concerns about the welfare of a child, they should 

be reported to KCC so that an appropriate response can be made to safeguard and support the child. 

• In Kent, the Central Referral Unit consists of the Central Duty Team, which deals with referrals 

meeting the threshold for a response from social care, and Early Help Triage. 

• Early Help Triage receives notifications in relation to children needing additional support, which may 

relate to their health, educational, or social development, and are likely to be short term needs. This 

also includes children and families requiring intensive support. 

• The most common source of Early Help Notifications (EHNs) is schools and academies. Health 

providers, including CAMHS, are also a common source.  

• The most common reasons for an EHN are significant behavioural difficulties; significant school non-

attendance; and a member of the household having emotional wellbeing or mental health needs. 

• EHNs, which indicate a need for intensive support (but do not meet the threshold for referral to 

SCS), are passed to the relevant Early Help and Preventative Services District Team who assess a 

family’s needs in more detail and provide and co-ordinate support required. 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

%
 E

H
N

s 
p

er
 1

0
,0

0
0

 u
n

d
er

 1
8

s 

Kent

Jan 2016 (month snapshot) 
What does this Indicator measure? 

• This indicator shows the number of EHNs 

received by Early Help Triage each month 

(excluding those which meet the threshold for 

SCS and Domestic Abuse Notifications – see 

next page) expressed as a rate per 10,000 under 

18 year olds. 

• The graph shows this EHN rate for each district 

(based on the child’s home address) for January 

2016. LCPGs will be provided with an update of 

this data every two months. 

• There is considerable variation between 

districts, with the rate in Canterbury more than 

twice the rate in Sevenoaks in January. 

 
Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• EHNs exist so that concerns about families can be identified at an early stage and support can be 

given to prevent the escalation of need. Whilst an ideal outcome would be that there are no families 

in need of such support, and hence no need for EHNs, in reality EHNs will continue to be necessary 

and helpful so the aim is to safely minimise rather than indiscriminately reduce rates. 

• Including this indicator will help partners at district-level better understand the reasons behind EHNs, 

enabling them to explore differences in how need is identified and reported, as well as in need itself. 

This will also help partners of the 0-25 HWB better understand the variation seen across the county. 
7 



Children and Young People  

Grow Up in Safe Families and Communities 

Indicator 5: DOMESTIC ABUSE NOTIFICATIONS 

Why is this Indicator important? 

• In addition to the direct physical risk to children present during incidents of domestic violence, the 

impact of witnessing domestic abuse is well-documented. In 2002, the law was updated to include 

witnessing domestic abuse within the legal definition of ‘harm’ to child.  

• Children of all ages, including unborn children, are impacted by witnessing domestic abuse. 

• Younger children may become anxious and start to behave as much younger than they are, they may 

find it difficult to sleep, wet the bed or have frequent temper tantrums. 

• The reaction of older children tends to be different for boys and girls. Boys are more likely to display 

their distress outwardly, for example by becoming aggressive or violent. They are more likely to use 

drugs or alcohol and more likely to miss school. 

• In general, girls are more likely to deal with their distress inwardly and may become withdrawn, 

anxious or depressed. They are more likely to develop eating disorders and more likely to self-harm. 

• The impact of witnessing domestic can also extend into adulthood and effect relationships in later 

life, with girls more likely to choose an abusive partner. 

• These wide-ranging and long-lasting impacts demonstrate the importance of keeping children and 

young people safe from the harm of witnessing domestic abuse. 

 

  
  

 

What does this Indicator measure? 

• This indicator measures Domestic 

Abuse Notifications (DANs). 

• Every time Kent Police are called 

to an incident of domestic abuse 

or violence and a child is present, 

they notify Specialist Children’s 

Services at KCC of the incident. 

• The information is used by SCS to 

ensure that children and young 

people are safe, their response 

will vary based on the particular 

circumstances of each incident. 

• This indicator gives the total 

number of DANs received so far 

during the year 2015/16. Figures 

are expressed as a rate per 

10,000 under 18 year olds to 

allow comparison between 

districts. 

 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• As well the other indicators selected for this Outcome, 

DANs exist as a way to keep children and young people safe. 

Reporting of domestic abuse incidents to the Police and 

communication between the Police and social care are 

important to reducing the risk of harm to children. 

• It is important to be clear that it is a reduction in domestic 

abuse incidents themselves that is sought. 

• It is also possible that an understanding of the rate of 

DANs is some districts may lead LCPGs to discussions 

about hidden incidents of domestic abuse within their 

communities which go unreported. 

• Reducing domestic abuse incidents calls for a response 

from all partners who work with children and parents to 

educate, support and empower parents who experience  

domestic abuse. 

• There is an increase in young people who experience 

abuse in relationships, with 1 in 5 teenagers reporting 

physical violence. This highlights the need for education 

from an early age in relation to healthy relationships, 

gender equality and empowerment. 

8 



Existing activity relating to this Outcome 

Some examples of existing projects and activities delivering improvements in this outcome are: 

• A new school-based service will support young people with emotional health needs. The service will 

also support the recovery of young people in school who have more severe mental health needs and 

are accessing specialist mental health services. 

• KSCB are working with the Lullaby Trust to raise parents awareness of ‘Safer Sleeping’, highlighting 

the dangers of parents co-sleeping with their babies. 

• HeadStart Kent it is a big lottery funded programme to improve emotional wellbeing and increase 

resilience in 10-16 year olds.  This programme is trialling new approaches to see what works for 

Kent’s young people.  

 

 

• This outcome relates to the physical, mental and emotional health of children and young people of 

all ages, including relating to maternal health. 

• Key areas of concern relating to good health which have been identified are smoking in pregnancy, 

breastfeeding, oral health, healthy weight, physical activity and childhood immunisations. 

• The most prominent issue consistently identified across all districts was that of emotional and mental 

health amongst children and young people, and associated concerns, such as self-harm. 

• FOUR INDICATORS which demonstrate different aspects of this outcome have been identified : 

EXCESS WEIGHT 

SELF-HARM RELATED HOSPITAL ADMISSIONS EARLY HELP NOTIFICATIONS ABOUT MENTAL HEALTH 

BREASTFEEDING 

Views of Children, Young People and Families  

• Children and young people were asked to identify the most important things needed for  

good health, over half said healthy diet , the next most common answer was exercise. 

• Some young people also identified concerns about the impact of a negative body image. 

 

 

 

• Young people were also concerned about emotional and mental health, in particular an impact on 

mental health, or depression, was identified by young people as a possible consequence of life 

decisions going wrong. 

• Parents’ views largely aligned with those of children and young people. A recurrent response in 

relation to changes they would like to see was about more readily available GP appointments. 

 

 

Stop obsessing over weight and appearance. Female, 15, Shepway 

No negative body shaming. Female, 15, Maidstone. 

More widely available mental health 

services, especially specialists for under 18s.  

Female, 16, Tunbridge Wells  

Children and Young People  

Have Good Physical, Mental & Emotional Health 

 9 



Indicator 6: EXCESS WEIGHT 

Children and Young People  

Have Good Physical, Mental & Emotional Health 

Why is excess weight important? 

• Childhood obesity is considered to be one of the most serious public health challenges. The 

proportion of children who are overweight or obese has increased rapidly over the last 20 years. 

• Children and young people who are obese are more likely to be ill, and more likely to be absent from 

school as a result. 

• Childhood obesity has been linked to a range of health problems in children and young people, such 

as diabetes, asthma, mental health disorders and high blood pressure. It also linked to health 

problems in adult life. 

 
How is excess weight measured? 

• The National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) measures the height and weight of children in 

Reception (aged 4 to 5 years) and Year 6 (aged 10 to 11 years) to assess overweight and obesity levels 

in children within primary schools. The NCMP has been in place since 2005. 

• Children's heights and weights are measured and used to calculate a Body Mass Index (BMI) centile. 

Children with ‘excess weight’ include children whose BMI is categorised as ‘overweight’ or ‘obese’. 

• KCC is responsible for collecting data from all children in state-funded schools (with the exception of 

those whose parents opt out). The measurement process is overseen by trained healthcare 

professionals in schools. 

• This data is used at a national level to support public health initiatives and locally to inform the 

planning and delivery of services for children. 

 

20

24

28

32

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

%
 c

h
ild

re
n

 w
it

h
 E

xc
es

s 
W

ei
gh

t 

Statistical
Neighbours

England

Kent

20

24

28

32

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

%
 c

h
ild

re
n

  w
it

h
 E

xc
es

s 
W

ei
gh

t 

• The two graphs below show the percentage of children in Kent with excess weight in Reception and Year 6 

over the last six years. Kent is compared to the national figure as well as its statistical neighbours. 

• In 2015, the percentage of children with excess weight in Reception rose and is now higher than the England 

and statistical neighbour average. The percentage in Year 6  remains below the national average. 

Reception Year 6 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• A forthcoming healthy weight strategy for Kent will set out actions to prevent children developing 

excess weight and a pathway to work with those who require support to achieve a healthy weight. 

• Partners in LCPGs, including schools, are well placed to develop local responses to this strategy and 

influence this indicator through initiatives relating to healthy diet and physical activity. 

10 



How is breastfeeding measured? 

• NHS England collect and publish national data about breastfeeding at two stages: 

 

 

 

 

• The graph shows breastfeeding initiation 

rates for Kent compared to its statistical  

neighbours, and England for 2014/15. 

• Kent’s breastfeeding initiation rate falls below 

the England rate, and sits in the bottom half 

of its neighbours. 

• 6-8 week prevalence data is not currently  

published for Kent. This is because NHS England 

require 95% data coverage for this indicator. 

• That means data must be recorded and  

submitted for 95% of babies who are due their 

6-8 weeks check. 

• Previously, NHS England have required 85% data coverage, and Kent is working towards this level. 

With continued improvement, it is expected that local 6-8 week prevalence data (at 85% coverage) 

will be available within the next year. 

 

 

Indicator 7: BREASTFEEDING 

Children and Young People  

Have Good Physical, Mental & Emotional Health 

Why is breastfeeding important? 

• The World Health Organization (WHO) and UNICEF recommend starting breastfeeding within the 

first hour after birth and exclusive breastfeeding for the first six months. Continued breastfeeding is 

recommended for two years or more (alongside complementary feeding starting from six months). 

• Breastfeeding has a range of health benefits for both mother and baby. Babies who are breastfed are 

at lower risk of developing certain health problems in later life, such as diabetes, obesity and high 

blood pressure. Breastfeeding also lowers the risk of sudden infant death syndrome. 

• There is evidence that breastfeeding has a positive impact on the relationship between mother and 

baby. 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

%
 m

o
th

er
s 

in
it

ia
ti

n
g 

b
re

as
tf

ee
d

in
g 

 (
w

it
h

in
 4

8
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
d

el
iv

er
y)

 

England

Data for 2014/15 

Breastfeeding Initiation 

This is recorded within the first 48 hours after 

the birth of a baby. Data is recorded by 

hospitals for each baby delivered. 

Breastfeeding Prevalence at 6-8 weeks 

At each baby’s 6-8 week check, health visitors 

record whether the baby is totally or partially 

breastfed  (or not at all) breastfed. 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• Initially, only the breastfeeding initiation indicator will be available to use and will be shared with 

LCPGs at district level. Partners will continue to build on existing initiatives to promote breastfeeding 

and support new mothers. 

• Additionally, continued efforts will be made to increase data coverage, ensuring there is support given 

and importance placed on recording this information for babies at 6-8 week. 

11 



Indicator 8: HOSPITAL ADMISSIONS FOR SELF-HARM 

Children and Young People  

Have Good Physical, Mental & Emotional Health 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

0
-1

7
 y

ea
r 

o
ld

 h
o

sp
it

al
 a

d
m

is
si

o
n

s 
(p

er
 1

0
,0

0
0

) 

Kent

What does this Indicator measure? 

• When someone is admitted to hospital, the 

main reason for their admission is recorded, as 

are any other health issues identified (these are 

referred to as primary and secondary diagnoses).  

• This indicator shows all under 18 years olds who 

were admitted to hospital where deliberate self-

harm was recorded as either a primary or a 

secondary diagnosis.  

• The indicator for the CYPP will be updated 

monthly and will show a projected annual rate 

of admissions per 10,000 under 18 year olds. 

What do we know about self-harm? 
• Self-harm is a term used when someone injures or harms themselves on purpose rather than by 

accident. Common examples include overdosing (self-poisoning), cutting, burning or pulling hair.  

• Self-harm also includes reckless or risk-taking behaviours such as unsafe sex, drug use or binge eating. 

These behaviours are more difficult to identify as ‘self-harm’ as they may or may not be as a result of 

an intention to cause harm, or a disregard for personal safety. 

• Research has shown that the experiences most closely linked to self-harm in young people are mental 

health problems, family breakdown, being in care, and experiencing abuse. 

• There is an important difference between self-harm and risk of committing suicide. Although a 

proportion of young people who self-harm are at an increased risk, for many young people, self-harm 

is a way to cope with, or express, emotional distress and is not linked a desire to end their own life. 

• Overall, it is very difficult to identify how many young people self-harming, this is because very few 

young people disclose what is going on. It is thought that around 13% of young people may try to 

hurt themselves on purpose at some point between the ages of 11 and 16. 

• In 2014, figures were published suggesting a 70% increase in 10-14 year olds attending A&E for self-

harm related reasons over the previous two years. This increase highlights the need for partners to 

work together to prevent self-harm and support young people who are experiencing it. 

 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• The aim is to reduce this indicator as far as possible, with the ideal being that there are no young 

people who require admission to hospital as a result of self-harm. 

• Partners will need to work together to understand and address the underlying risk factors of self-

harm, educate and raise awareness around the issue and provide support to young people already 

experiencing self-harm to minimise its effects and develop safer mechanisms for coping with 

emotional distress and difficulty. 

2014/15 annual data 

12 



Indicator 9: EARLY HELP NOTIFICATIONS ABOUT MENTAL HEALTH 

Children and Young People  

Have Good Physical, Mental & Emotional Health 

What does this Indicator measure? 

• Indicator 4 uses overall Early Help 

Notifications (EHNs) to help measure the 

safety of a child growing up in Kent. 

• This indicator measures a specific subset of 

EHNs, that is, those where the primary reason 

for making contact with Early Help Triage is 

mental and emotional health of the 

child/young person. 

• As with Indicator 4, this indicator will be 

reported as a rate per 10,000 under 18s and 

reported at district level every two months. 

• National comparison for this dataset is not 

possible as it relates to Kent-specific systems 

and processes. 

 

Why was this Indicator chosen? 

• Emotional and mental health of children and 

young people, is consistently identified as a 

priority across all partners and all districts, as 

well as by young people themselves. 

• Unlike many of the issues in the CYPP where 

there exists reliable and regular indicators 

collected and reported nationally, there is not 

currently an equivalent indicator relating to 

the mental health of young people. 

• This measure gives an indication of the level 

of mental health concern identified amongst 

children and young people including where 

intervention from specialist health services or 

hospitals is required. 

 

Mental and Emotional Health in Kent 

• The Good Childhood Report (2013) found that around 20% of children now experience below average 

levels of wellbeing, and 10% have a diagnosable mental health condition. 

• The Kent Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (2015) estimates that nearly 21,000 children and young 

people aged 5 to 16 years in Kent have a mental health disorder. Emotional disorders are more 

common in girls  whilst conduct disorders, hyperkinetic disorders and Autistic Spectrum Conditions 

are more common boys. 

• Kent’s emotional wellbeing strategy for children and young people, ‘The Way Ahead’, was published 

in May 2015. It sets out a whole-system approach for improving early help;  creating better access to 

additional support; strengthening the whole-family approach and improved support with transition 

and recovery. 

• The Way Ahead also identifies key areas of need, including the high predicted number of children 

with Autistic Spectrum Conditions (ASC), young people who have a ‘dual diagnosis’ and need support 

with substance misuse and emotional wellbeing difficulties, and children and young people affected 

by family poverty – which may be the subject of EHNs about mental. 

• LCPGs have a key role to play at a local level in supporting the delivery of the aims set out in The Way 

Ahead. For example; to develop self-esteem and resilience among children and young people, 

particularly those who are most at risk of poor outcomes due to circumstances in their lives; to 

support schools and early years settings in improving the emotional resilience of children and young 

people; and to support parents who are experiencing mental health issues. 

• This indicator will offer partners at district-level further insight into the current levels of identification 

of need relating to mental health and emotional wellbeing amongst children and young people. 

 

 

13 



 

Existing activity relating to this Outcome 

Some examples of existing projects and activities delivering improvements in this outcome are: 

• Additional places have been commissioned within Kent Schools to support Primary and Secondary 

aged pupils with speech, language and communication needs.   

• Special Schools are being funded to provide bespoke training and advice to mainstream schools on 

more specialist aspects of Special Educational Needs (SEN), including autism and speech and 

language needs.  

• The ‘Sound Progress’ programme has been developed for teaching phonemic skills which are linked 

to reading, in particular to children in primary schools. 

• The Skills and Employability Service support all young people aged 14 to 24, including disadvantaged 

young people, who are at risk of becoming NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training). 

• This outcome relates to learning and achievement for children of all ages, including development of 

pre-school children, achievement and progress of school-aged children and aspirations of school-

leavers. 

• Key areas of concern relating to learning and achievement which have been identified are literacy, 

speech and language, school readiness and the achievement gap (free school meals). 

• A recurrent theme raised by every LCPG was skills and aspirations amongst young people. 

• FIVE INDICATORS have been identified which demonstrate different aspects of this outcome: 

EARLY YEARS FOUNDATION STAGE 

GCSE RESULTS YP NOT IN EDUCATION, TRAINING OR EMPLOYMENT 

READING, WRITING & MATHS AT KS2 

Views of Children, Young People and Families  

• Children and young people were asked what they would like to learn or achieve before  

reaching adulthood, the most common answers (each given by 25% of young people)  

were getting good grades (in particular GCSEs) and learning finance skills (in particular paying taxes). 

• A fifth of young people said they want to learn to drive, other common answers were getting into 

college or university and getting a job. 

 

 

• Nearly two thirds of children and young people said that secondary school was the stage when young 

people need more support than they currently receive. Parents identified teenage years as the time 

young people need the most support. 

 

 

How to pay taxes, how to get a job, how to pay 

rent. Male, 17, Maidstone. 

Good exam results, meaningful friendships, help others 

around me. Male, 16, Thanet.  

Children and Young People  

Learn & Have Opportunities to Achieve Throughout Their Lives 

PERSISTENT SCHOOL ABSENCE 

14 



Indicator 10: EARLY YEARS FOUNDATION STAGE 

Children and Young People  

Learn & Have Opportunities to Achieve Throughout Their Lives 

What is the Early Years Foundation Stage? 

• The Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) is a national framework developed by the Government for 

children from birth to age five years. 

• It sets the standards that all early years providers must meet to ensure children’s ‘school readiness’ 

and aims to give children the knowledge and skills that provide a foundation for future progress. 

• The EYFS sets out seven areas of learning and development which should be used to design 

educational programmes in early years settings. 

 

What is changing at EYFS? 

• This year, the Government are introducing significant changes in the way they measure and track 

attainment and progress throughout primary school, from EYFS to Key Stage 2. 

• EYFS Profiles will no longer be compulsory and instead early years providers will be expected to 

complete a Reception Baseline Assessment for each child which will be the starting point for 

measuring progress through primary school. 

• Because this is a brand new system, and because unlike the EYFS Profile, completing the Reception 

Baseline Assessment will not be mandatory, it is not yet clear what the impact will be on the data 

that is available nationally for this indicator. 

• Learning and development at EYFS remain of vital importance, as these changes become clearer, 

LCPGs and the 0-25 HWB will be provided with the best available data to track progress. 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

%
 a

ch
ie

vi
n

g 
a 

G
o

o
d

 L
ev

el
 o

f 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
at

 E
YF

S 

England

Data for 2014/15 

What is measured at EYFS? 

• Until this year (2016), it has been 

compulsory for early years providers to 

complete and EYFS Profile for each child. 

• A child’s EYFS Profile records the level of 

development of in each of the Prime 

Learning Areas as well as literacy and maths. 

• Data on EYFS Profiles has been collected 

from every local authority, allowing for 

national benchmarking.  

10 

Prime Learning Areas: Specific Learning Areas: 

• Communication and Language;  

• Physical Development; 

• Personal, Social and Emotional Development. 

• Literacy; 

• Mathematics; 

• Understanding the World; 

• Expressive Arts and Design. 

Definition: Children achieving a good level of development are those achieving at least the expected level within 

the four prime learning areas, plus literacy and mathematics. 

15 



Indicator 11: READING, WRITING & MATHS AT KEY STAGE 2 

Children and Young People  

Learn & Have Opportunities to Achieve Throughout Their Lives 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

%
 a

ch
ie

vi
n

g 
Le

ve
l 4

 o
r 

ab
o

ve
 in

 r
ea

d
in

g,
 

w
ri

ti
n

g 
an

d
 m

at
h

s 

England

What does this Indicator measure ? 

• At the age of eleven, during the last year of Primary School (end of Key Stage 2), the attainment of 

school pupils in English (including reading and writing) and maths is tested. 

• Up until 2015, Standard Assessment Tests (SATs) measured attainment using numbered Levels 3 – 5, 

with Level 4 being the expected level of achievement. An additional Level 6 exam was offered to 

children expected to exceed the requirements of the standard paper. 

• This indicator measures the percentage of children in Kent who achieved Level 4 (the expected level of 

achievement) or above in reading, writing and maths in their Key Stage 2 assessment at age eleven. 

• The figure includes all maintained schools and academies in Kent. Because SATs only take place once a 

year, this is indicator is updated annually. 

 

What is changing at Key Stage 2? 

• After introducing a new curriculum two years ago, 2016 will be the first year of a new type of 

assessment for eleven olds at the end of Key Stage 2. 

• The new system will no longer use the numbered levels, instead a scaling system will be used which 

sets a ‘national standard’ as a score of 100. Every child’s raw score will be converted into a scaled 

score, spanning 100, with scores above exceeding the national standard. 

• Because 2016 is the first year of the new system, it is not yet known exactly how the scaling process 

will work (it is dependent on the result obtained nationally when the test is taken). After the first 

year of the CYPP, this indicator will change to reflect the new system.  

• The graphs shows Kent compared to 

England and its statistical neighbours in 

2015. 

• Like three of its neighbours, Kent is in line 

with the England average with 80% of 

children achieving Level 4 or above. 

• Last year, in Kent, 62% of children eligible 

for free school meals achieved Level 4 

compared to 66% nationally. 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• Attainment in Primary School is influenced by a wide range of factors including parents’ aspirations for 

their children, home learning environment, behavioural problems and problems relating to peers. 

• Whilst schools themselves are a natural contributor to improving this indicator, the wide ranging 

factors at play demonstrate the need for a partnership approach to working with families. 

• Schools’ involvement with LCPGs to work jointly to understand and influence the local picture will be 

essential for improving this indicator. 
16 



Indicator 12: GCSE RESULTS 

Children and Young People  

Learn & Have Opportunities to Achieve Throughout Their Lives 

Data for 2014/15 

What does the GCSE indicator show? 

• Pupils undertake GCSE exams at the end of Key Stage 4 (during the school year they turn 16) in a 

range of subject areas. GCSEs are currently graded from A* to G.  

• This indicator measures the percentage of pupils who achieve five or more GCSEs grade A*-C 

including English and Maths [5+ A*-C inc. (E&M) ].The indicator also includes qualifications 

equivalent to GCSEs (for example; NVQs or Functional Skills). 

• This is a standard indicator recorded and reported on nationally. Because GCSEs are completed once 

a year, this indicator is updated annually. 

• Further analysis by need group is also available for this indicator. The difference between results for 

young people who are eligible for free school meals (FSM) and those who are not eligible is measured 

to give an understanding of the impact of socio-economic background on attainment. 

 

What is changing at GCSE? 

• Over the next few years the Government are introducing new GCSE exams across all subjects, starting 

with English and maths in 2017. The new style of exam will be graded on a numbered scale from 9 to 

1 (the numbers do not directly correspond to current grades). 

• Because of the staggered introduction of these new style exams, it won’t be until 2019 that all GCSE 

grades are measured on the new 9 to 1 scale. The indicator included here will need to be updated 

accordingly to follow national changes. 

• Overall, Kent performed better than 

England and in line with its statistical 

neighbours last year, with 57.3% of pupils 

achieving 5+ A*-C inc. (E&M). 

• Amongst pupils eligible for FSM, Kent’s 

figures were lower than the national and 

statistical neighbour average with 27.1% 

achieving the level for this indicator. 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• As with attainment at KS2, there are many factors that impact young people’s attainment at GCSE 

level.  Bullying, risk-taking behaviours such as drug and alcohol use and frequent arguments with 

parents have been shown to have a negative impact. Believing in their own ability and having 

aspirations to enter higher education increase the likelihood of achievement. 

• These inter-linked issues call for a partnership approach in order to raise this indicator in Kent. 

Understanding the particular challenges for vulnerable groups in local areas will also enable LCPGs 

and the 0-25 HWB to drive important. 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

All pupils Pupils eligible for FSM

%
 a

ch
ie

vi
n

g 
5

+ 
G

C
SE

s 
(i

n
c 

E&
M

) Kent

England

Statistical Neighbours

2015 

17 



Indicator 13: YOUNG PEOPLE NOT IN EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT OR 
TRAINING 

Children and Young People  

Learn & Have Opportunities to Achieve Throughout Their Lives 

Why is this Indicator important? 

• Engagement in learning and educational attainment amongst young people has a demonstrable 

impact on outcomes throughout adult life.  

• Evidence shows that not being in education, employment or training (NEET) between the ages of 16 

and 18 is a major predictor of later unemployment, lower job security and lower rates of pay. 

National research suggests that 1 in 6 young people who are NEET will never secure long-term 

employment. 

• The wider impact of being NEET is also significant, with an increased likelihood of poor mental and 

physical health, teenage conception, risk-taking behaviours and insecure housing or homelessness. 

• Like many indicators, the causes and effects of being NEET are wide-ranging and link to all of the 

outcomes identified in the CYPP. 

0

2

4

6

8

10

Ja
n

-1
5

Fe
b

-1
5

M
ar

-1
5

A
p

r-
15

M
ay

-…

Ju
n

-1
5

Ju
l-

15

A
u

g-
1

5

Se
p

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

D
ec

-1
5

Ja
n

-1
6

%
 1

6
-1

8
 y

ea
ro

ld
s 

w
h

o
 a

re
 N

EE
T 

Jan 15 Target

Jan 16 Target

Jan 17 Target

Kent NEET Strategy 

• The approach to increasing the number of young people engaged in education, employment or 

training is set out in KCC’s Education and Young People’s Services (EYPS) NEET Strategy 2015-16. 

• The strategy includes specific targets for reducing this indicator, with the ambitious aim to reduce 

the percentage of young people who are NEET to 1% by January 2017. 

• There are three strands of work identified in the NEET strategy: integrated and high quality data 

systems; collaborative working across all KCC services and, high quality personalised pathways with 

positive destinations across all districts. 

• Including NEET figures as indicator within the CYPP and ensuring it is a focus of LCPGs will support 

collaborative working across partners at district levels. LCPGs are well-placed to engage with local 

schools and providers of post-16 education. 

*Targets shown are those identified in the  
   Kent NEET Strategy 

How is this Indicator measured? 

• Data on the percentage of young people who are 

NEET is published by KCC’s EYPS every month. 

• The overall percentage is the indicator used in the 

CYPP. Data is also published about ‘not knowns’ i.e. 

young people whose destination after leaving school 

is not recorded. 

• Data is also reported by vulnerable group, including 

children in care and care leavers, young people who 

are pregnant or are parents and UASC. 

• The richness of this data will support LCPGs and the 

0-25 HWB to understand local variation and develop 

local partnership responses. 

18 



Indicator 14: PERSISTENT SCHOOL ABSENCE 

Children and Young People  

Learn & Have Opportunities to Achieve Throughout Their Lives 

Why is this Indicator important? 

• Like many indicators, school absence is important because of both its effects and its causes. 

Persistent absence from school has an effect on a child or young person’s learning and development, 

and will impact on all of the other indicators within this outcome.  

• The impact of missing school is wide-ranging; as well as academic attainment, school plays a key part 

in a child’s social development, communication, access to healthy food and physical activity. 

• Understanding school absence is also important because of its causes. For young children reliant on 

their parents to take them to school, ongoing absence may indicate difficulties at home and a need 

for additional family support. Factors could, for example, include financial concerns, parental mental 

health issues, domestic abuse and, parental drug or alcohol use. 

• The same issues may also be behind persistent absence at Secondary School. It may also be a result 

of other issues in a young person’s life such as, lack of aspiration, poor emotional wellbeing, bullying, 

drug or alcohol misuse, involvement with gangs or child sexual exploitation. 

• It is also the case that even if school absence was not initially caused by any of those issues, being 

out of school increases a young person’s vulnerability to many of the concerns throughout the CYPP. 

• The complexity and variety of causes and effects behind this indicator call for a partnership response 

to drive improvement. 

  
  

 

0

2

4

6

8

10

Tu
n

. W
el

ls

To
n

. &
 M

al
lin

g

A
sh

fo
rd

Se
ve

n
o

ak
s

D
o

ve
r

Sh
ep

w
ay

C
an

te
rb

u
ry

M
ai

d
st

o
n

e

Th
an

et

D
ar

tf
o

rd

Sw
al

e

G
ra

ve
sh

am%
 P

R
IM

A
R

Y 
p

u
p

ils
 -

 p
er

si
st

en
t 

ab
se

n
ce

  
(1

0
 %

 t
h

re
sh

o
ld

) 

Kent

0

4

8

12

16

20

D
ar

tf
o

rd

Th
an

et

M
ai

d
st

o
n

e

Tu
n

. W
el

ls

C
an

te
rb

u
ry

Sw
al

e

D
o

ve
r

G
ra

ve
sh

am

To
n

. &
…

Sh
ep

w
ay

Se
ve

n
o

ak
s

A
sh

fo
rd%
 S

EC
O

N
D

A
R

Y 
p

u
p

ils
 -

 p
er

si
st

en
t 

ab
se

n
ce

  
(1

0
%

 t
h

re
sh

o
ld

) 

How is this Indicator measured? 

• School attendance data from all Kent maintained 

schools and academies is collected by KCC and is 

used to calculate a range of indicators, which are 

published nationally by DfE. 

• In previous years, the threshold for ‘persistent 

absence’ has been 15%. This academic year, the 

definition is changing and the threshold is now 10%. 

• Any pupil missing 10% or more of school sessions will 

be counted as ‘persistently absent’. The indicator is 

reported separately for Primary and Secondary 

school, both will be included in the CYPP. 

• Under the old definition (15% threshold) the 

percentage of ‘persistently absent’ pupils increased 

in Kent between 2013/14 and 2014/15. 

• The graphs here shows persistent absence across 

districts  (using the new 10% threshold) in 2014/15. 

• The variation in districts demonstrates the benefits 

of a localised approach led by LCPGs. 

PRIMARY 

SECONDARY 

19 



Existing activity relating to this Outcome 

Some examples of existing projects and activities delivering improvements in this outcome are: 

• Community alcohol partnerships are led within local communities to tackle anti-social behaviour in 

local areas which is related to alcohol or drug use. 

• The number of community pharmacies providing young people with emergency hormonal 

contraception, chlamydia screening , and free condoms has increased to facilitate easier access to 

these services.   

• There are dedicated sexual health services for young people across the County.  Young people can 

also access an all age service. 

• RisKit is a specialist programme targeting young people in schools who have been identified as 

vulnerable, or who are involved in risk-taking behaviour, such as drug and alcohol use, or 

unprotected sex.  This is delivered by Addaction, the children and young people’s service provider for 

substance misuse. 

• KSCB deliver multi-agency training to professionals working with children and young people who self-

harm.  This training provides staff with knowledge and understanding to support young people who 

self-harm.  

• Issues surrounding risk-taking behaviour and its consequences for children and young people’s safety, 

relationships and health. 

• Key areas of concern relating to making safe and positive decisions which have been identified are 

drug and alcohol misuse, sexual health, healthy relationships, anti-social behaviour and offending. 

• THREE INDICATORS have been identified which demonstrate different aspects of this outcome: 

DRUG & ALCOHOL RELATED HOSPITAL ADMISSIONS FIRST TIME ENTRY TO THE YOUTH JUSTICE SYSTEM 

Views of Children, Young People and Families  

• Children and young people were asked to think of things children or young people might  

need help making decisions about. The most common answers related to school, with over 

a quarter saying either GCSE options or which secondary school to go to. 

• Sex was also a common theme, 1 in 8 answers referred to sexual relationships or starting a family. 

The issue of consent was also identified, in particular by teenage girls. 

 

 

• Young people also identified that they might need help making decisions about smoking, alcohol and 

drug use. Parents also identified drugs as an important issue, it was the most common answer 

amongst parents who are asked about which issues to include in the CYPP. 

 

Having a baby. Male, 12, Thanet. 

Sexual health, unawareness and the REAL facts. Female, F, Swale. 

Not doing drugs or causing trouble on the 

streets.  Male, 18, Gravesham.  

TEENAGE CONCEPTION 

Children and Young People  

Make Safe & Positive Decisions 

20 



Indicator 15: DRUG & ALCOHOL RELATED HOSPITAL ADMISSIONS 

Children and Young People  

Make Safe & Positive Decisions 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

0
-1

7
 y

ea
r 

o
ld

 h
o

sp
it

al
 a

d
m

is
si

o
n

s 
(p

er
 1

0
,0

0
0

) 

Kent

What does this Indicator measure? 

• When someone is admitted to hospital, the 

main reason for their admission is recorded, as 

are any other health issues identified (these are 

referred to as primary and secondary diagnoses).  

• This indicator shows all under 18 years olds who 

were admitted to hospital where drug or alcohol 

use was recorded as either a primary or a 

secondary diagnosis.  

• The indicator for the CYPP will be updated 

monthly and will show a projected annual rate 

of admissions per 10,000 under 18 year olds. 

What do we know about drug and alcohol misuse? 
• Results from national research in 2014 conclude that 38% of pupils between 11 and 15 years old 

nationally reported that they had drunk alcohol, boys and girls were equally likely to have done so. 

15% of pupils said they had ever taken drugs and 10% had taken drugs in the last year. 

• As with many of the indicators in the CYPP, drug and alcohol use is of concern because of both its 

effect on children and young people and because it may point towards other underlying issues.  

• Drug and alcohol use can create significant challenges for young people by damaging their mental 

and physical health, educational attainment and leading to further risk-taking behaviour (including 

risks to personal safety which may lead to hospital admission). 

• Drug and alcohol use can be a consequence of family breakdown, mental health issues or behavioural 

problems. It is also related to school absence, going missing and involvement in gangs. 

• The nature of young people’s drug and alcohol problems is different to that of adults, young people 

are rarely dependent as there has not been enough time for  use to become entrenched, therefore 

young people affected by drug or alcohol misuse need access to specialist services. 

• Informing and educating children and young people at early enough stage, and repeating those 

messages has been shown to have an impact on drug and alcohol misuse as children grow up. The 

attitudes and behaviours of parents also have an impact on the likelihood of a young person engaging 

in substance misuse. 

 

2014/15 annual data 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• The aim is to reduce this indicator as far as possible, so that no young people require admission to 

hospital as a consequence of substance misuse. 

• The variation between districts shown in the graph above shows the importance of a local approach 

to addressing this issue, and provides an opportunity for LCPGs to work together across districts, 

with the support of the 0-25 HWB, to share best practice and ideas for addressing this issue. 

• All partners have a role to play in preventing substance misuse by working together to educate and 

raise awareness amongst young people and their families. 
21 



Indicator 16: FIRST TIME ENTRY TO THE YOUTH JUSTICE SYSTEM 

Children and Young People  

Make Safe & Positive Decisions 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014Fi
rs

t 
ti

m
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e 
Yo

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
Sy

st
e,

m
 

(a
ge

 1
0

-1
7

) p
er

 1
0

0
,0

0
0

  

Statistical Neighbours England Kent

What does this Indicator measure? 

• The number of first time entrant to 

the youth justice system (YJS) is a 

figure provided by Kent Police giving 

the number of children and young 

people aged 10 to 17 years 

(inclusive) who have received a 

formal caution or court disposal for 

the first time each month. 

• This data is also collected and 

reported nationally by the Youth 

Justice Board and Ministry of Justice. 

What do we know about this Indicator? 

• Nationally, the number of first time entrants has 

fallen each year since 2007. This trend is reflected in 

Kent. 

• The number of females entering the YJS for the first 

time is falling at a faster rate than the number of 

males, and the average age nationally has increased 

over time. 

• The most common offence nationally in 2014/15 was 

‘summary non-motoring offences’ (less serious crimes 

which are dealt with in magistrates’ court), followed 

by theft and then drug offences.  

• The graph shows the annual rate of 

first time entrants to the YJS per 

100,000 10-17 year olds. 

• The rate has declined each year 

nationally, amongst statistical 

neighbours and in Kent. 

• The rate in Kent has been above 

England and statistical neighbours 

each year and remained above 

average in 2014. 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• Youth offending links to a range of other issues for young people, with evidence of links between 

offending and school exclusion, drug use, gang-involvement and going missing. 

• There is a strong association between rates of young offenders and deprivation.  Family risk factors 

include worklessness, substance misuse, criminality, domestic violence, financial stress, teenage 

parenting and overcrowding. Children in care are also more likely to offend. 

• Working across partnerships to reduce the risk factors present in a young person’s life will help to 

reduce the likelihood of entering the YJS. 

• The rate of young people aged 10-14 years in the YJS is considerably higher in Kent than the 

national average, pointing towards a need for education and prevention at a younger age. 

• LCPGs are well-placed to work towards the continuing reduction of this indicator in their districts. 

The membership of Police within LCPGs will support groups to develop further local intelligence and 

understanding.  

22 



Indicator 17: TEENAGE CONCEPTION 

Children and Young People  

Make Safe & Positive Decisions 

Why is Teenage Conception important? 

• Reducing teenage conceptions (under-18 conceptions) has been a long-standing national and local 

priority and remains a key indicator. 

• Teenage pregnancy has an impact on a range of outcomes for young people. Teenage parents are 

more likely than their peers to live in poverty and to be without education, employment or training. 

There is also an association with emotional health and wellbeing problems. 

• The infant mortality rate for babies of teenage mothers is 60% higher than for babies of older 

mothers. There is also an increased likelihood of low birth weight, childhood accidents and admission 

to hospital. 

• Teenage pregnancy is also associated with other risk-taking behaviours such as youth offending, 

disengagement from education, and drug and alcohol misuse. 

• Children in care and care leavers, children born to teenage parents and children growing up in 

economically deprived areas are particularly vulnerable to teenage conception. 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

R
at

e 
o

f 
co

n
ce

p
ti

o
n

s 
p

er
 1

,0
0

0
  f

em
al

es
 a

ge
d

 1
5

-1
7

 

Statistical Neighbours England Kent Data for 2014 15 

• The graph to the right shows 

teenage conception rates 

amongst 15-17 year olds in Kent 

compared to England, and 

statistical neighbours. 

• Over the last 9 years, teenage 

conception rates have reduced 

locally and nationally. 

• The most recent data (2014) 

shows the rate in Kent is now just 

lower than the England figure 
(22.2 per 1,000 15-17 year olds 

compared to 22.8). 

Improving Outcomes with this Indicator 

• The National Teenage Pregnancy Strategy (2001) sought to halve the rate of teenage conception 

nationally by 2011. England now has its lowest teenage conception rate for 30 years. 

• In Kent, there is significant disparity in rates between districts and there remains a need to work 

together to address the factors which lead to teenage conception. 

• Last year, Kent County Council published the Kent Teenage Pregnancy Strategy 2015-20 which sets out 

six ambitions. These include building aspirations amongst young people and increasing emotional 

health and resilience. 

• LCPGs are ideally situated to understand the specific situation in their district and work in partnership 

at a local level to deliver these ambitions, ensuring young people are empowered to make safe and 

positive decisions. 

23 



Delivering the CYPP 

How will the CYPP be used to improve outcomes? 

• The 17 CYPP indicators identified here will be put together and reported on in a set of CYPP 

Dashboards which monitor progress on each indicator. The dashboards will be updated with the 

most recent data every two months, starting in April 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Children’s Partnership Groups 

• There will be a separate dashboard for each 

district which will be used by the LCPG in that 

area each time they meet. LCPGs will use 

their dashboards to understand the indicators 

in need of greatest attention in their district. 

• LCPGs will be encouraged to utilise the OBA 

methodology (described in the introduction) 

to work together as partners and plan activity 

which will deliver improvement in the 

indicators and therefore the CYPP Outcomes. 

• OBA encourages partners to share their 

knowledge and understanding on the context 

and local background of each indicator to 

help them problem-solve and identify 

opportunities to work together better. 

• LCPGs will also be supported to further 

interrogate the data provided on the CYPP 

Dashboard in order to understand all they 

can about what lies beneath the indicator. 

• The regular updates to the CYPP Dashboard 

will enable LCPGs to review and track their 

progress in improving each indicator. 

 

The 0-25 Health and Wellbeing Board 

• In addition to the 12 CYPP District 

Dashboards, there will be a countywide 

dashboard which tracks all of the CYPP 

Indicators across the whole of Kent. 

• This dashboard will also be updated every two 

months and will be reviewed by the 0-25 HWB 

each time they meet. 

• The Kent dashboard will give the 0-25 HWB 

oversight and an increased understanding of 

the progress being made towards the CYPP 

Outcomes across the county. 

• Alongside the dashboard itself, the 0-25 HWB 

will receive regular updates on activity from 

the LCPG Chairs Group (the 12 Chairs of LCPGs 

from across the county). This will help them 

understand the activity taking place at district-

level. 

• This level of insight will enable partners at 

county-level to identify patterns and recurrent 

themes across the districts enabling them to 

work together with LCPGs to address any 

common challenges. 

 

How and when will the CYPP be reviewed? 

• Every six months, the 0-25 HWB will oversee the production of a CYPP Progress Report for partners 

and stakeholders. 

• The Progress Report will identify progress made in each Outcome and track the 17 CYPP Indicators. 

LCPGs will have opportunity to contribute  updates from their respective districts to add context. 

• At the end of the year, when all 17 indicators (including those which are only reported annually) 

have been updated, the CYPP will be reviewed by the 0-25 HWB and LCPGs. 

• The annual review will be an opportunity to examine if all of the indicators remain the most 

meaningful and relevant, and refresh the list where appropriate. 

• The 0-25 HWB and LCPGs remain committed to ensuring the views of children, young people and 

their families are considered and will work to meaningfully involve them when reviewing the CYPP. 

24 



References and Data Sources 

25 





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

8 June 2016
______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Clerk to the Board 

Subject: DGS Health and Wellbeing Board Draft Schedule of Meetings 
2016/2017

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
This report sets out the agreed programme of meetings for the Board in 2016/ 2017, 
informs the Board of Member availability for a meeting in August 2016, and asks 
Members to select a suitable date based on the availability.

Recommendations

Members are asked to 

I. note the schedule for the 2016 and 2017 and the venues for each.

II. Select a suitable date for the August meeting of the Board.

1. Background and discussion

The Board currently meets on a bi monthly basis roughly half way between the 
meetings of the Kent HWB.  The proposed schedule attempts to replicate this 
pattern.

This report sets out in Appendix 1 the approved schedule of meetings for 2016/17 
together with venues for the meetings.  

Appendix 2 sets out the availability of Members for a meeting to be arranged in 
August 2016.

2. Recommendations

Members are asked to 

I. note the schedule for the 2016 and 2017 and the venues for each.

II. Select a suitable date for the August meeting of the Board.

3. Contact details

Neil Murphy Clerk to the Board, Dartford Borough Council, 
email:neil.murphy@dartford.gov.uk

3. Background Papers - None





Appendix A 

DGS HWB  Dates Venue

June 8 Dartford Civic Centre

August Gravesham Civic 
Centre

Oct 12 Dartford Civic Centre

Dec 7 Gravesham Civic 
Centre

Feb 1 Dartford Civic Centre

Apr 12 Gravesham Civic 
Centre





Appendix B

Member Availability in August 2016

3rd 17th
Roger Gough
Ann Allen
Tony Searles
David Turner

Debbie Stock
Elizabeth Lunt

Sheri Green
Graham Harris

Ann Tidmarsh
Andrew Scott -  Clark
Stuart Collins

Mel Norris
Sarah Kilkie

Lesley Bowles

Cecilia Yardley





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

8 JUNE 2016

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group 

Subject: DGS Health and Wellbeing Board Work Plan

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
This report proposes items for inclusion in the Board’s forward work plan.

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Consider and approve the forward work plan, subject to any amendments or 
additions that the Board wishes to make. 

1. Background and discussion

1.1 The work plan schedules update reports from the Local Children’s Partnership 
Groups (previously Children’s Operational Groups) and Health Inequalities Groups. 

1.2 The work plan also gives advance notice of other items which the Board has 
indicated that it wishes to consider, or that the Kent Board has asked it to consider.

1.3 The work plan does not preclude matters not on the work plan being submitted to any 
meeting of the Board with the agreement of the Chairman.

1.4 The Board will have an opportunity at each meeting to consider its work plan and add 
items, particularly key plans and strategies, when the timing of such is known.  

2 Conclusion and Recommendations
The work plan ensures the Health and Wellbeing Board receives regular reports from 
those sub-Groups managing the key areas of the Board’s business and gives advance 
notice of other matters to be discussed. The Board is asked to:

Consider and approve the forward work plan, subject to any amendments or 
additions that the Board wishes to make. 

3 Contact details

Sheri Green, Strategic Director (External Services), Dartford Borough Council, 
email:sheri.green@dartford.gov.uk

4. Background Papers - None





1

DARTFORD GRAVESEND AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

8 JUNE 2016
Agenda Item 

APPENDIX A
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley HWB Forward Work Plan

Meeting Topic Suggested Lead

August 
2016

Update on implications of new 
developments for the health sector and 
new shape of service provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

Annual review of Local Health Profiles and 
Priorities

PH & Districts

Report from Health Inequality Groups, 
including update on ‘Mind the Gap’ 

PH & Districts

Regeneration in Swanley SDC
 (Lesley Bowles)

Fall Prevention & Integrated Falls Pilot 
(deferred from June)

KCC (Karen Shaw) & 
CCG (Anna Wilson)

Local Estate Strategy (deferred from June) CCG (Debbie Stock)

October 
2016

Update on implications of new 
developments for the health sector and 
new shape of service provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

Report on Adolescent Mental Health CCG (Dr Lunt)

December 
2016

Update on implications of new 
developments for the health sector and 
new shape of service provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

Report from Local Children’s Partnership 
Groups

LCPGs
(Stuart Collins)

Provisional meeting dates for 2017-2018 

February 
2017

Update on implications of new 
developments for the health sector and 
new shape of service provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

April 2017 Update on implications of new 
developments for the health sector and 
new shape of service provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

June 2017 Update on implications of new 
developments for the health sector and 
new shape of service provision

CCG & KCC
(Mike Gibson)

Report from Local Children’s Partnership 
Groups

LCPGs
(Stuart Collins)

Alcohol Strategy Update CGL 
(Adam Green)



2

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED

JSNA - Assessment of the effectiveness of local services relating to the identified 
service priorities

Obesity Strategy
Employability & Health – GP Education


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Kent County Council Health and Wellbeing Board: Meeting held on 25 May 2016
	6 Actions Outstanding from Previous Meetings.
	8 Local Children's Partnership Groups
	Kent CYPP DRAFT Young People's Plan

	11 Meeting Schedule for 2016 / 2017 and Availability for a Meeting in August
	HWB Dates and Venues
	August Availability

	13 Board Work Programme
	20160608 Work Plan Appendix !!


